
 

Municipality of Tweed 
Request for Proposal – Addendum 

Electronic Document Management System 
 
The following is a summary of all questions asked and the responses to maintain a fair, 
competitive proposal process. 

1. Does the Municipality currently use, or have future plans to use, Microsoft’s 
Office 365 solutions? 
 
Yes. Starting in 2020, the Municipality purchased a limited number of licences for 
Office 365 for the computers in the administration building. 
 

2. Does the Municipality currently have any EDMS in place? If yes, which one? 
 
There are no electronic document management systems in place currently. 
 

3. Is physical scanning and uploading of the documents part of the expectation from 
the proponent? 
 
As mentioned in the RFP, physical scanning and initial uploading of the 
documents are an expectation of the proponent. 
 

4. Does the proponent need to build an EDMS from scratch or can they use an off 
the shelf solution for this project? 
 
The option is up to the proponent. 
 

5. Is this an onsite project or can the proponent execute this from an offshore 
location in India? 
 
The physical scanning and initial uploading would require onsite activities. If 
training and other activities can be done through other electronic means, such as 
Zoom, that would be acceptable. 
 

6. Is it mandatory to have/give references/experiences from upper and lower tier 
Ontario municipalities to take part in the bid? 
 
As requested in the RFP, references and experiences, particularly within upper 
and lower tier Ontario municipalities, is a requirement of the form of the proposal. 
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7. Does the proponent need to just have the scanning and upload feature or are 

OCR capabilities are also required? 
 
OCR capabilities would be considered an asset but are not necessary. 
 

8. What is the volume of the documents that need to be scanned and managed 
through this system? 

Volume of documents varies department to department, including those that 
need to be scanned that are classified as permanent documents. Currently we 
have approximately 87,000 documents (both electronic and hard copy). Of these, 
a portion of them will not need to be scanned if older than a set number of years 
if not deemed permanent in nature. A better inventory of what actually needs to 
be scanned will be available around May 20, 2021 and added to the addendum. 

9. What are the important features required in the EDMS? Provide the details and 
priorities for the features.  
 
The important features the Municipality is seeking include: access from anywhere 
(cloud based), easy to use and navigate, capabilities to secure specific folders to 
specific users to add additional layer of protection to any confidential information. 
 

10. What is the technical environment on which the EDMS will be used / deployed? 
 
The Municipality works on a Microsoft based system. 
 

11. What are the languages being used in the physical/electronic documents 
mentioned in the RFP? 
 
Language is primarily English but there may be some documents in French. 
 

12. Elaborate more on the standardized filing system referred to in the RFP. 
 
The Municipality is currently looking at purchasing the TOMRMS system (The 
Ontario Municipal Records Management System) which lays out how documents 
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should be sorted and links legislated retention requirements to specific 
categories within the system. 
 

13. What is the budget and timeline decided for implementing the EDMS? 
 
The project is a sub-project to the overall project. The overall IT Infrastructure 
project, as budgeted in the 2021 budget, is $100,000. However, this is covering 
running fiber internet to our buildings, rerunning wiring within the administration 
buildings, update server and wireless extenders, upgrade accounting software to 
cloud-based version, purchase licence to TOMRMS, purchase of 6 additional 
computers, purchase of 5 mobile internet sticks, development of a municipal app, 
upgrade of website for integration of fillable forms, online payments and online 
bookings as well as this digital document management system. The EDMS would 
not need to be started until the fiber lines have been run and fully connected to 
the system which is not expected to be completed until June or July 2021. 
Completion of project is expected no later than December 31, 2021. 
 

14. How many users will be utilizing the system and how many employees of the 
Municipality? 
 
12 user licences would be required. The Municipality has approximately 30 
employees plus 6 employees that are shared with other Municipalities in shared 
service agreements. There are also 25 to 30 volunteer firefighters as well. 
 

15. What is the reasoning and intention of Cloud-Based hosting?  
 
The first priority is to allow staff to work from home when and if needed. The 
ability to access documents from anywhere for the staff is the highest concern. In 
addition, in case of an emergency to this building (fire, flood, etc.), the 
Municipality would be able to setup immediately at another backup location with 
nominal start up time. We also had a consultant review the potential of document 
digitization in 2020. There were a number of items noted for action, which can be 
found on our website at Municipality of Tweed - Document Digitization - Sept 22 
2020.pdf 
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16. Does the Municipality currently use eScribe for our meeting management 
software? 

Yes. The Municipality joined eScribe in 2020 for our minutes and agenda 
management. 

17. Would the Municipality be looking to publish all by-laws on the web or through a 
web portal? 
 
Yes. Once all are digitized, the Municipality would look at providing all by-laws on 
the website for public usage. 
 

18. For implementation or if a proponent requires an onsite visit, can this be 
accommodated under the COVID rules? 
 
Yes. So long as all who enter the building book an appointment timeslot, remain 
masked, and hand sanitize regularly while maintaining social distancing, this can 
be accommodated on an as needed basis. 
 

19. What types of documents is the Municipality looking to have scanned to begin 
with? 
 
The Municipality would be looking at having most permanent documents 
scanned such as minutes, by-laws, financial statements, property files and old 
census and education system registrations as well as the death and marriage 
logs. The Municipality would be looking at about 3 years of scanned payroll and 
finance information. Assessment rolls would not need to be scanned as they will 
be prepared for the Hastings Archives. 
 

20. Can a demonstration be provided as part of the process? 
 
The Municipality will seek out demonstration of software only from the top 
preferred proponents after the June 1st submission deadline. The Municipality will 
only contact the proponents they are seeking a demonstration from. 
 

21. What re the primary goals of this project? 
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There are 3 main goals, as described in #15. The first is to provide ability for staff 
to work from home and improve social distancing for COVID pandemic reasons. 
The second is in case of emergencies we are looking to ensure no loss of 
documents and be able to start up from anywhere that we can access the 
internet. Thirdly is it is a follow up to the consultant review completed in 2020 
looking to modernize our processes for efficiencies. 
 

22. Is the Municipality looking for Records Management functionality? 
 
Yes. The Municipality is looking for the system to integrate the TOMRMS 
standardized filing system and retention periods into the system layout. 
 

23. Where are the Municipality’s electronic documents stored today? 
 
Currently documents are stored on a server. 
 

24. Does the Municipality want to migrate from these locations to the new system as 
part of this project? 
 
Yes. The Municipality would be looking to see the additional cost for the 
proponent to complete the migration part of the project. Final negotiation of this 
piece will occur upon awarding of the contract. 
 

25. Why does the Municipality wish to scan physical documents into the system? 
 
Similar to the goals and priorities of the project overall, the Municipality is looking 
to become efficient in their filing systems. Currently documents are often 
duplicated and stored in multiple locations and each with a different filing system. 
By having them all accessible online in one place by staff, there will be less need 
to duplicate files while still ensuring documents are being retained for the correct 
period of time with no loss natural to physical copies (subject to risks of fire, 
water damage, age, air, etc.). 
 

26. How many departments of the Municipality? 
 
The Municipality has the following departments: 
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Administration (finance, corporate services, planning) 
Public Works (roads, bridges, water, sewer, landfill) 
Community Development (economic development activities) 
Parks and Recreation (parks, arena, pool, splashpad, library through separate 
board) 
 
Joint departments: 
 
Fire (shared with one other Municipality) 
By-Law (shared with four other Municipalities) 
Building Services (shared with five other Municipalities) 
 

27. Can the EDMS be hosted on premises with VPN access or must it be cloud 
hosted? 
 
We are looking for a cloud hosted option to not be reliant upon a physical server 
being operational onsite. However, due to the Canadian Data Sovereignty White 
Paper, the cloud servers should be on Canadian soil. 
 

28. Will all of the users be in the system at once or can concurrent licenses be used? 

There are times that all users will be in the system at the same time. Therefore 
all users will require a separate license. 

29. Is the Municipality looking to automate disposal processes following the retention 
by-law? 
 
This would be an option that the Municipality would favour, however is not 
mandatory. 
 

30. What is the estimated total size of files that will be hosted in the EDMS? 
 
This is currently unknown while the Municipality completes a detailed inventory of 
documents to be scanned and going forward. Currently, electronic files total 
about 347 Gb.  
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31. Is the Municipality looking to automate approvals within the EDMS for efficiency 
of processing? 
 
This would be an option that the Municipality would favour, however is not 
mandatory. 
 

 


